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‪EEF@EJ 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GKEJFJDDEFGJGF@‭@… 
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CDEEEFGJGFHEJIDJHJGKEJHDJBJHJLGJHEGAM 

c\JW]adeEdJafe]^dQgEdJhaiJOR ‟E‧EGG@․’AGKJD•‥EHJCKFDGEDJDFKJJE 
jkFYJlmGNnJomKpq 

CPJDJGEFKG•FFEJDEF@JG@‣JBEEF@EJDE․@EEEFG 
FAGKJD•‥EDJGFHEJIDJHJGKEJHDJBJHJLG 

HEGAM… 

M\JrQLedQWeJWJWLrJ^XJ_^WaeQ^` NAIIFEJ 

VK\JLW]^^_JQ`X^dbaeQ^` 

‪‟“ ’‟‰J’‛‛‟”DD ‪&‚„”J„O N”‟ P’'J„O N”‟ ” ’“?J’‛‛‟”DD 

< 7JPDFG‭E•GJDGDEEG 
NAIIFEJ‣J„‰J<;:7: 

Vo\JZ]^`EJW^`eaWeJ`fbZEdJX^dJaXeEdJ]^fdLJEbEd[E`WQEL 

CJGGFFGJ„FHE †•DF‬J†E E@ 

‡•GEE ‪D•GF•BFE 

”HED‧EGF‬J‪KJGEJ„AH EDJC,,,․,,,․ 
,,,,M 

Y\JLW]^^_JYEZJarrdELLJhfd_q LLL… AII@F•…JD‧ 

R\JraeEJ^XJQ`QeQa_JW]adeEd 7 9:77; 

[\JraeEJXQdLeJ^ZE`ErJX^d 7 9:77; 
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NK\JaZZd^\ErJLW]^^_JbQLLQ^`JhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YV 

iMNOOPiJOFPIq 

“DD“‚„JD‡’‡” ”„‡ 

‡KEJH•@@•JGJJIJGKEJNAIIFEJJ’FFHEH‬JJIJDF•EGFEJCKFDGEDJDFKJJEJCN’DCDMJ•@JGJJIAEI•EEJGKEJK•‧KJHEHFGH@JJI 
@GAHEGG@J•GJNAIIFEJJIDJHJ‧DFHE@J8JGJJ<:‣JGKE•DJBFDEGG@JFGHJGKEJFJHHAG•G‬JF@JFJLKJEEJ ‬JFHHDE@@•G‧JGKE 

IJEEJL•G‧I 

․J‪DJ‧H•G‧JFGJE-FEEEEGGJFFFHEH•FJEHAFFG•JGFEJBEFGJL•GKJEHBKF@•@JJGJHFGK‣J@F•EGFE‣JFGHJGEFKGJEJ•‫‬ 

LK•EEJ 
BDJH•G‧JGKEJJBBJDGAG•G•‫‬JIJDJ@GAHEGG@JGJJE-FEEJ•GJFG‬JI•EEHJJIJ@GAH‬… 

․J‪DJH•G‧JFJD•‧JDJA@‣J•GGJ.@‫E‣JFKFEEEG‧•G‧JFGHJEGKFGFEHJFADD•FAEAHJIJFA@EHJJGJBDEBFD•G‧J@GAHEGG•‫FG•‫ 
BEDJ•GH•HAFEJ F@•@JIJDJFJEEE‧EJIDJHJFJFJHHAG•G•‫‬JLKJJFDEJGJGJ@ED‫EHJ@AFFE@@IAEE‬J ‬JBA E•FJEHAFFG•JG 

FGHJFFGGJGJFIIJDHJGKEJBD•‫FGEJEHAFFG•JGJ@ED…@FE•‫ 

․J‪DEBFD•G‧J@GAHEGG@JGJJ EFJHEJDE@BJG@• EE‣JEHAFFGEHJF•G•‥EG@JLKJJKF‫EJGKEJ@‭•EE@JFGHJAGHED@GFGH•G‧JGJ 

BFDG•F•BFGEJFGHJLJD‭JBDJHAFG•‫EE‬J•GJFJH•‫ED@E‣JHAEG•FAEGADFE‣J‧EJ FEE‬JJD•EGGEHJEGDJGHEGGJFGHJLKJJFDE•‫ 

DEFH‬JGJJFFDD‬JGKEJGJDFKJJIJ‭GJLEEH‧E‣JIDEEHJH‣JFGHJBDJ@BED•G‬… 

․JCDEFG•G‧JFJBFDGGED@K•BJFGHJBFDG•F•BFG•JGJEGDJGHEGGJFHJG‧JGKEJ@GAHEGGJ․JGEFFKEDJ․JBFDEGGJGD•FHJGKFG•‫ 
L•EEJBDJHEJJADJ•‫‬JAGKJL•GKJGKEJ@ABBJDGJGEFE@@FD‬JGJJDEFFKJGKE•DJK•‧KE@GJBJGEGG•FEJ/J•GGEEEEFGAFEE‬‣ 
@JF•FEE‬‣JEHJG•JGFEE‬JFGHJBK‬@•FFEE‬… 

No\J_E]JrELQ[`JE_EbE`eLJhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YVJiMNOOPi 

OFPIq 
0”‰J‛”D“†„J”?” ”„‡DJCND•EIJKEFH•G‧JIJEEJLEHJ ‬JFJHE@FD•BG•JGJJIJEFFKJ0E‬J‛E@•‧GJ”EEHEGG@ 

C0‛”M…J0‛”@JFDEJGKJ@EJ‧EGEDFEJF@BEFG@JJIJGKEJ@FKJJEJGKFGJFDEJ•GGJ@.‫EJJDJAG•1AEJGJJGKEJ@FKJJE•‫FG 

H•@@•JGJFGHJ‧JFE@‣JFDEJFJDEJGJJGKEJ@FKJJE.@JJ‫EDFEEJHE@•‧G‣JFGHJFDEJFD•G•FFEJGJJ•G@J@AFFE@@…J‡KE 

HE@•‧GJEEEHEGG@JHF‬J•GFEAHEJFJ@BEF•I•FJFJGGEGGJFDEFJIJFA@2JAG•1AEJ@GAHEGGJBJBAEFG•JG@JGJJ E 

@ED‫EH2J@BEF•I•FJEHAFFG•JGFEJBDJ‧DFH@JJDJBEHF‧J‧•FFEJFBBDJFFKE@2JAG•1AEJFFEEGHFD‣J@FKEHAEE‣JJD 
FJGI•‧ADFG•JG@JJIJ@GAHEGG@JFGHJ@GFII2JFGH9JDJ•GGJ…@GEH@‬@‫EJJD‧FG•‥FG•JGFEJ@GDAFGADE@JFGHJ•‫FG 

3FD•F EEJ< ”HBKF@•@J FGKJ4JDF•EGFEJFGHJ‡EFKGJEJ‧‬ 

DFKJJE.JFADD•FAEAH‣JE-GDFFADD•FAEFDJFFG•G•E@‣JFGHJ AH‧EH•‫ 
DEIEEFG@JGKEJ•HBEEHEGGFG•JGJJIJGK•@JHE@•‧GJEEEHEGG…JN’DCD 
JIIED@JEEEFG•‬2‧‫E@J•GJ@F•EGFEJFGHJGEFKGJEJJPJDEG@•F‣ 
’GFGJH‬‣J’@GDJGJH‬‣J‟J JG•F@‣JFGHJCJHBAGEDJ‪DJ‧DFHH•G‧… 
DJHEJJIJGKEJE-GDFFADD•FAEFDJFFG•‣@G•E@J•GFEAHEJ‟J JG•F•‫ 
 D•H‧EJ A•EH•G‧‣J FGKJGEFH‣JCEEEBKJGEJ’BBJ‛E‣‫EEJBHEGG 
FGHJDF•EGFEJCFHB@…JDFKJJEJ AH‧EGJ•GFEAHEJ@BEGH•G‧JIJD 
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GKE@EJE-GDFFADD•FAEFDJFFG•G•E@…J•‫ 

‡JJ EJF EEJGJJ•HBEEHEGGJJADJGEFKGJEJ‧‬JIJFA@‣JN’DCD 
EGFJADF‧E@JGEFFKED@JGJJA@EJF‧‫F•EF EEJGEFKGJEJ‬JFGHJFGGEGH 
GEFKGJEJ‧‬JLJD‭@KJB@…JN’DCDJFE@JJKJ@G@JLJD‭@KJB@JIJD 
GEFFKE@‣JIJDJE-FHBEEJDHFDGNJFDHJGDF•G•G‧‣J•‪FHJGDF•G•G‧‣ 
”HAFFG•JGFEJDJIGLFDEJ‡DF•G•G‧JFGHJHJDE…J‚ADJ@FKJJEJFADDEGGE‬ 
KF@JFE•F‭EDJFEF@@DJJHJ@EG@‣J•‪FHJFFDG@‣JCKDJHE JJ‭JCFDG@‣ 
DHFDGJNJFDH@‣J‡F EEGJ‪C@JF‫F•EF EEJIJDJGEFFKED@JGJJA@EJ•G 
FEF@@…J 
N’DCDJ•@JFJHH•GGEHJGJJDEHF•GJAB․GJ․HFGEJL•GKJEHAFFG•JG 
DEEFGEHJGEFKGJEJ‧‬…J‚ADJDE‧AEFDE‬JABHFGEHJLE @•GEJBDJ@HE•‫ 
BFDEGG@JFGHJ@GAHEGG@JL•GKJ•G․HEBGKJFJ‫EDF‧EJJIJ@FKJJE 
E‫EGG@‣JBF@@LJDH․BDJGEFGEHJFFFE@@JGJJ@GAHEGGJBDJ‧DE@@‣JHF•E‬ 
F@@•‧GHEGG@‣JFEF@@JGJGE@‣JFGHJA@EIAEJE•G‭@JGJJJAG@•HE 
DE@JADFE@JFGHJEHAFFG•JGFEJBDJ‧DFH@… 
N’DCDJF@@•‧G@J†JJ‧EEJFFFJAGG@JGJJGEFFKED@JFGHJ@GAHEGG@ 
FGHJEGFJADF‧E@JA@•G‧J†JJ‧EEJ‛JF@JIJDJF@@•‧GHEGG@JFGH 
FEF@@JGJGE@JFGHJ•GJGK•@JLF‬JBDEBFDE@J@FKJJEJGJJHJ‫EJF 
BFBEDEE@@JEGDJGHEGG…J•‫ 

N’DCDJBDJ‫EJ‫EGAE@JIJDJFEEJ@GAHEGG@J•GJHFGK•HE@JFJHBEG•G•‫ 
@F•EGFEJFGHJGEFKGJEJ‧‬J ‬JBFDG•F•BFG•G‧J•GJEJFFE‣JDE‧•JGFEJFGH 
GFG•JGFEJFJHBEG•G•JG@…J”‫ED‬J‬EFD‣JN’DCDJJD‧FG•‥E@J•G@ 
FGGAFEJ@F•EGFEJIF•DJLK•FKJ D•G‧@JGKEJEJFFEJFJHHAG•G‬ 
GJ‧EGKEDJ•GFEAH•G‧JBDJIE@@JD@JIDJHJEJFFEJAG•‫ED@•G•E@‣JEEEFGEH 
JII•F•FE@‣JFJHHAG•G‬JEEFHED@‣JBFDEGG@‣JGEFFKED@‣JFGH 
@GAHEGG@…JDGAHEGG@J•GJE‫ED‬J@F•EGFEJFJAD@EJFDEJDE1A•DEHJGJ 
FJHBEEGEJFJ@F•EGFEJBDJ5EFGJHEHJG@GDFG•G‧JAGHED@GFGH•G‧ 
FGHJFBBE•FFG•JGJJIJ@F•EGG•I•FJHEGKJH…J 

“GJFHH•G•JGJGJJGKEJ@FKJJE․L•HEJBDE@EGGFG•JG@JFGH 
FJHBEG•G•JG@‣J@GAHEGG@JL•GKJK•‧KJ1AFE•G‬JBDJ5EFG@JFJGG•GAEJJG 
•GJDE‧•JGFEJFGHJ@GFGEJL•HEJ@F•EGFEJFJHBEG•G•JG@…JN’DCDJ•@ 
GKEJJGE‬JFKFDGEDJ@FKJJEJBFDG•F•BFGE@J•GJ •HHEEJ@FKJJEJDF•EGFE 
‚E‬HB•FHJ•GJNAIIFEJJFGHJDEFE•‫E@JHAEG•BEEJHEHFE@JE‫ED‬J‬EFD… 
N’DCDJK•‧KJ@FKJJEJ@GAHEGG@JLJGJGKEJI•D@GJBEFFEJ•GJGDEG@E‮ 
„ELJ‰JD‭JDF•EGFEJ‟J JG•F@JFJHBEG•G•JG… 
“GJFHH•G•JG‣JN’DCDJ@GAHEGG@JBFDG•F•BFGEJ•GJGAHEDJA@JEJFFE 
FGHJGFG•JGFEJHFGKJ@F•EGFEJFGHJEG‧•GEED•G‧JFJHBEG•G•JG@ 
@JHEJJIJLK•FKJFDEJE•@GEHJ EEJL…J‡EFKJEFGE•FDJ‰„‮J‣DF‮ 
FJG‧DE@@‣J‟J JG•FJCJHBEG•G•JG‣JPAGADEJC•G‬JCJHBEG•G•JG… 

3FD•F EEJ: “GH•‧HAFE•‥EHJ“G@GDAFG•JG@J4J‡AGJD•G•‫ 

“GH•HAFE•‥EHJ•G@GDAFG•JGJ•@JJGEJJIJGKEJHJ@GJ•HBJDGFGG•‫ 
•G@GDAFG•JGFEJ@GDFGE‧•E@JJIJN’DCDJGKFGJ•@JBDJHEHJGJ•‫ 
@GAHEGG@…J”FFKJ@GAHEGG6@JFFFHEH•FJGEEH@JFDEJ•HEGG•I•EHJFGH 
HEGJ•GH•HAFEE•‫‬JF@JIJEEJL@…J‡EFFKED@J E‧•GJGKEJ‬EFDJL•GK 
•HBEEHEGG•G‧JFGJE-GEG@•@‫EJH•F‧GJ@G•FJGE@GJF@JLEEEJF 
DE@EL•G‧JGKEJFADDEGGJ@GFGEJGE@GJ@FJDE@JIJDJGKE•DJ@GAHEGG•‫ 
LK•FKJE@GF E•@KJFJ@JE•HJ F@EJIJDJHEEG•G‧JGKEJ@GAHEGG@.JGEEH@… 
‡EFFKED@JGF•EJDJHJLGJGKE•DJ•G@GDAFG•JGJGJJEFFKJ@GAHEGG.@ 
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FFFHEH•FJEE‫EEJL•GKJGEFE@@FD‬J•GGED‫EGG•JG@JLK•FKJFDE 
EGGEDEHJJGJN’DCDJ@FKJJEJHFGF F@E…JDE‫EDFEJ EGFKHFD‭JFGH 
BDFFG•FEJGE@G@JFDEJ‧•‫EGJGKDJA‧KJAGJGKEJ‬EFDJGJJF@@E@@ 
@GAHEGG@JEEFDG•G‧…J’IGEDJEFFKJGE@G‣JGEFFKED@J@KJAEHJ@A H•GJF 
HEGF•EEHJDEIEEFG•JGJBEFGJLKEDEJ•GH•HAFEJFGHJ@HFEEJ‧DJAB•‫ 
•G@GDAFG•JGJBEFG@JFDEJEF•HJJAG… 

’GJN’DCDJ •HHEEJ@FKJJEJ FGKJFGHJ”?’JFEF@@E@JFDEJHE@•‧GEH 
GJJKF‫EJFHH•G•JGFEJ@HFEEJ‧DJABJ@E@@•JG@J•GJGKEJFIGEDGJJG 
 F@EHJJGJ@GAHEGG@.J•GH•HAFEJGEEH@…JDAFKJ@HFEEJ‧DJAB@JFDE•‫ 
DEEHJE‫ED‬J1AFDGEDJ F@EHJJGJGEFFKED.@JIEEH FF‭…J“G@•‫ 
FHH•G•JG‣JIAEEJG•HEJGEFFKEDJF•HE@JFDEJF@@•‧GEHJ•GJ FGKJFGH 
”?’JFEF@@E@JGJJBDJHAFEJ•G@GDAFG•JG@JE@BEF•FEE•‫‬JGJ•HEJ•GH•‫ 
HEEGJGKEJGEEH@JJIJFG․JD•@‭J@GAHEGGJBJBAEFG•JG… 

’GJGKEDJF@BEFGJJIJ•GH•@•HAFE•‥EHJ•G@GDAFG•JG@JFGJN’DCDJ•‫ 
FJEEE‧EJGAGJD@…JN’DCDJLJD‭JFEJ@EE‬JL•GKJGEFD ‬JFJEEE‧E@JGJ 
 D•G‧J…@‫JEAGGEEDJGAGJD@J•GJGJJ@ABBJDGJ•G@JFFFHEH•FJBDJ‧DFH 
‡KE‬JFDEJF@@•‧GEHJGJJLJD‭JL•GKJ@GAHEGG@JJGJ•GH•@HAFEJ F@E•‫ 
JGJDFGADHF‬@…JDGFF‭JFGHJEAGFKJFDEJBDJHEHJGJJ@GAHEGG@JLKJ•‫ 
FJHEJGJJDFGADHF‬J@FKJJEJGJJ@GAH‬JL•GKJ•GH•…@HAFEJGAGJD•‫ 
‪DE‫EGG•JGJIJFA@J•@JFJ@•H•EFDJBDJ‧DFHJFGJN’DCDJLK•FK 
BDJHAFEJFFFHEH•FJFGHJ@JF•FEJ@ED@FE@JGJJ@GAHEGG•‫•‫•HE@J•GH•‫ 
LKJJFFGJ@GF‬JFIGEDJ@FKJJE… 

‚GEJJIJGKEJLF‬@J@GAHEGG@J‧EGJ•G@GDAFG•JG@J•GJ@HFEEJ‧DJAB@J•@ 
 GKJBED•JH@…J“GJ•@JHE‫EEJBEHJFGJN’DCDJGJJBDJHEJ@GDAFGADEH•‫ 
•G@GDAFG•JGFEJG•HEJIJDJFFFHEH•FFEE‬JFGJD•@‭J@GAHEGG@JFGJGKE 
EGHJJIJGKEJHF‬…JNF@EHJJGJGEFFKEDJBAB•EJFJHH•GGEEJIEEH FF‭ 
FGHJ1AFDGEDE‬JDEBJDGJFFDH@‣J@GAHEGG@JFDEJF@@•‧GEHJ•GJ GK 
BED•JHJFEF@@E@JGJJ‧EGJF@@•@GFGFEJIJDJI•‫E․LEE‭JBED•JH…J‡LJ 
GEFFKED@JFDEJF@@•‧GEHJIJDJEFFKJFEF@@JGJJBDJHAFE•‫•HEJ•GH•‫ 
FGGEGG•JGJIJDJ@GAHEGG@…J’GJGKEJEGHJJIJEFFKJ1AFDGEDJ@GAHEGG@ 
E•@G@JFDEJABHFGEH… 

N’DCDJBF‬@J@BEF•FEJFGGEGG•JGJGJJ•G@JLEEE․DJAGHEHJFJEEE‧E 
‧A•HFGFEJBDJ‧DFHJLKEDEJ@GAHEGG@J‧EGJ•GH•HAFEJFGGEGG•JGJ•G•‫ 
E‫ED‬J@GEBJGJLFDH@JGKE•DJBJ@G․@EFJGHFD‬J‧JFE@…JN’DCD 
E-BJ@E@J•G@J@GAHEGG@JGJJBDE@G•‧•JA@JFJEEE‧E@JF@JEFDE‬JF@J8GK 
‧DFHEJ ‬JJD‧FG•‥•G‧JFFDEEDJIF•D@JFGHJI•EEHJGD•B@JGJJGKJ@E 
FJEEE‧E@…J‚GFEJGKE‬J EFJHEJIDE@KHEG‣J@GAHEGG@JDEFE•‫E 
LJD‭@KJBJJGJ‧JFEJ@EGG•G‧‣JFJEEE‧EJDEFH•GE@@‣JFGHJBFGEE@JL•GK 
N’DCDJFEAHG•…J“GJGKE•DJ5AG•JDJFGHJ@EG•JDJ‬EFD@J@GAHEGG@JFDE 
•GJ•GGEG@EJBDEBFDFG•JGJJIJ@GFGHFDH•‥EHJGE@G@‣JFJEEE‧EJ‣G•@•‫ 
FJEEE‧EJFBBE•FFG•JGJFGHJI•GFGF•FEJF•HJBDJFE@@…JDGAHEGG@JFDE 
•GH•HAFEE•‫‬J‧A•HEHJFGJE‫ED‬J@GEBJGJJHF‭EJ@ADEJGKE‬J‧DFHAFGE 
JGJG•HEJFGHJBAD@AEJGJJGKEJFFDEEDJJIJGKE•DJFKJ•FE… 

3FD•F EEJ* ‟JEEJ JHEE•G‧ 

’GJN’DCD‣JGEFFKED@JFFG•‫EE‬JEGFJADF‧EJ@GAHEGG@J ‬J@FKJJE 
L•HEJ EKFJDJBDJ‧DFH@JC•…E…J‪N“DMJF@JLEEEJF@JBFDG•F•BFGEJ•GJF•‫ 
HF•E‬JDJAG•GEJJIJGKEJ@FKJJE…J‡KEJBJLEDJJIJDJEEJHJHEE•G‧J•@ 
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E@BEF•FEE‬J•HBJDGFGGJ•GJHE‫EEJB•G‧JFJDE@BEFGJIJDJJGKED@JFGH 
@KFB•G‧JJ‫EDFEEJ@FKJJEJFE•HFGE…J 

‚GEJJIJGKEJE@@EGG•FEJBDJ‧DFH@JGKFGJFDEJ•GJBEFFEJFGJN’DCDJ•@ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School 
Buffalo, New York 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter 
School (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 
and the related statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related statements of 
activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and 
its cash flows for the years then ended and the changes in net assets and functional expenses for the 
year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School's statements of activities 
and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2017, and we expressed an unmodified audit 
opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 30, 2017. In our opinion, 
the summarized comparative information presented herein, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been 
derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 1, 
2018 on our consideration of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School's internal control over 
financial reporting, and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter 
School's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Buffalo 
Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Heveron & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 

Rochester, New York 
November 1, 2018 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

BALANCE SHEETS
	

June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

ASSETS 

2018 2017 
Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 736,820 $ 973,526 
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds 9,451 7,125 
Accounts Receivable 140,472 63,436 
Grants Receivable 79,351 45,569 
Inventory 36,471 16,346 

Total Current Assets 1,002,565 1,106,002 

Property and Equipment 
Land 186,400 186,400 
Building and Improvements 5,032,361 4,200,240 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1,802,655 1,210,326 
Vehicles 4,741 4,741 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,320,064) (976,484) 

Net Property and Equipment 5,706,093 4,625,223 

Other Assets 
Security Deposits 10,480 5,480 
Interest Rate Swap Contracts 28,971 -

Total Other Assets 39,451 5,480 

TOTAL ASSETS $6,748,109 $5,736,705 
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll and Benefits 
Extra Classroom Funds 
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Bonds Payable 

Less: Bond Acquisition Costs, Net
	
Net Bonds Payable
	

Interest Rate Swap Contracts
	

Total Long-Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted
	

Undesignated
	

Board Designated
	

Total Unrestricted Net Assets
	

Temporarily Restricted
	

Total Net Assets 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

2018 2017 

$ 183,520 
916,045 
11,494 

459,518 

$ 84,082 
358,834 

9,183 
411,642 

1,570,577 863,741 

1,754,324 
(110,266) 

1,644,058 
-

1,644,058 

2,179,004 
(133,080) 

2,045,924 
6,377 

2,052,301 

3,214,635 2,916,042 

3,420,125 
113,349 

3,533,474 
-

2,657,314 
113,349 

2,770,663 
50,000 

3,533,474 2,820,663 

$6,748,109 $5,736,705 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
	

For The Year Ended June 30, 2018
	

(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2017)
	

Temporarily 
Unrestricted Restricted 

Revenues and Other Support: 
Public School District: 

Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment $ 7,753,840 $ -
Revenue - Students with Disabilities 

Special Charter School Aid 
Federal Grants 
State Grants 
Contributions 
Other Income 
Released From Restriction 

Total Revenues and Other Support 

Expenses: 
Program Services:
	

Regular Education
	
Special Education
	
Other Programs
	

Total Program Services Expense 

Supporting Services:
	
Management and General
	

Total Expenses 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Gain on Change in Fair Value
 of Derivative Instruments 

Net Assets - End of Year 

290,969 -
195,016 -
393,450 -
89,451 -
17,841 -
43,498 -
50,000 (50,000) 

8,834,065 (50,000) 

5,778,479 -
373,022 -
113,572 -

6,265,073 -

1,841,529 -

8,106,602 -

727,463 (50,000) 

2,770,663 50,000 

35,348 -

$ 3,533,474 $ -

2018 2017
	

$ 7,753,840 $ 5,588,974
	
290,969 
195,016 
393,450 
89,451 
17,841 
43,498 
-

321,273 
84,114 

279,509 
158,947 

60,952 
34,411 
-

8,784,065 6,528,180 

5,778,479 
373,022 
113,572 

4,216,215 
198,727 
55,822 

6,265,073 4,470,764 

1,841,529 1,273,610 

8,106,602 5,744,374 

677,463 783,806 

2,820,663 1,968,498 

35,348 68,359 

$ 3,533,474 $ 2,820,663 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
	

For The Year Ended June 30, 2018
	

(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2017)
	

Program Services 
Regular Special Other Management 

2018 Education Education Programs and General 
No. of 

Positions 
Personnel Service Costs 

Instructional Personnel 65 $ 3,216,497 $ 195,216 $ 12,265 $ 65,881 
Non-Instructional Personnel 36 345,206 - - 429,611 
Administrative Personnel 7 - - - 496,378 

Total Salaries and Wages 108 3,561,703 195,216 12,265 991,870 

Retirement 232,864 19,116 - 47,402 
Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes 617,933 66,923 1,001 201,734 

Total Personnel Service Costs 4,412,500 281,255 13,266 1,241,006 

Depreciation 309,689 - - 33,891 
Other Professional Services 205,504 60,919 - 30,399 
Supplies and Materials 179,631 - - 41,318 
Technology 60,945 2,564 - 134,863 
Repairs and Maintenance 138,280 9,219 - 45,198 
Student Services 54,184 - 100,306 16,500 
Utilities 101,043 6,736 - 27,698 
Interest 115,728 5,010 - 2,282 
Insurance 79,342 5,056 - 21,889 
Professional Development 70,765 - - 19,114 

Totals
	
2018 2017 

$ 3,489,859 
774,817 
496,378 

$ 2,389,997 
472,915 
384,802 

4,761,054 3,247,714 

299,382 
887,591 

253,309 
668,382 

5,948,027 4,169,405 

343,580 
296,822 
220,949 
198,372 
192,697 
170,990 
135,477 
123,020 
106,287 
89,879 

226,759 
196,845 
167,777 
117,309 
102,214 
114,769 
62,820 

139,813 
74,482 
80,533
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2017) 

(Continued) 

Program Services 
Regular Special 

Education Education 
Other 

Programs 
Management 
and General 2018 

Totals 
2017 

Other Expenses 
Travel and Parking 
Marketing and Recruitment 
Equipment and Furnishings 
Office Expense 
Legal Services 
Accounting and Auditing Fees 

6,051 
44,796 

-
21 

-
-
-

-
2,263 
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

73,748 
4,527 

49,842 
45,578 
20,085 
17,138 
16,453 

79,799 
51,586 
49,842 
45,599 
20,085 
17,138 
16,453 

58,534 
63,995 
84,837 
20,655 
21,175 
27,532 
14,920 

Total Expenses $ 5,778,479 $ 373,022 $ 113,572 $ 1,841,529 $ 8,106,602 $ 5,744,374 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
	

For The Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

Cash Flow From Operating Activities 
Revenue from School Districts 
Special Charter School Aid 
Grant Revenues 
Contributions 
Other Sources 
Payments to Vendors for Goods and Services Rendered 
Payments to Charter School Personnel for Services Rendered 

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities 

Cash Flow From Investing Activities 
Purchase of Property and Equipment 

Cash Flow Used By Investing Activities 

Cash Flow From Financing Activities 
Proceeds from Line of Credit
	
Payments on Line of Credit
	
Payments on Bonds
	

Cash Flow Used By Financing Activities 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 

Supplemental Disclosures 
Cash Paid During The Year For: 

Interest 

2018 2017
	

$ 7,952,843 $ 5,876,218
	
195,016 
410,518 
17,841 
43,498 

(1,664,353) 
(5,390,816) 

84,114 
358,493 
60,952 
34,411 

(1,237,670) 
(4,205,972) 

1,564,547 970,546 

(1,424,449) (769,835) 

(1,424,449) (769,835) 

800,000 
(800,000) 
(376,804) 

-
-

(398,868) 

(376,804) (398,868) 

(236,706) (198,157) 

973,526 1,171,683 

$ 736,820 $ 973,526 

$ 92,175 $ 116,999 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
	

For The Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
	

(Continued)
	

Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 

Change in Net Assets 
Adjustments to Reconcile Excess of Support and Revenue 

Over Expenses to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Bond Acquisition Interest 
(Increase)/Decrease In: 

Accounts Receivable 
Grants Receivable 
Inventory 
Security Deposits 
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds 

Increase/(Decrease) In: 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Payroll and Benefits 
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds 

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities 

$ 
2018 
677,463 $ 

2017 
783,806 

343,580 
22,813 

226,759 
22,814 

(77,036) 
(33,782) 
(20,125) 
(5,000) 
(2,326) 

(48,959) 
(37,046) 
(3,372) 
-
3,718 

99,438 
557,211 

2,311 

1,564,547 

61,053 
(36,567) 
(1,660) 

970,546 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

Organization 
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School (the School) is a not-for-profit education 
corporation that operates kindergarten, and 5th through 12th grades dedicated to providing 
quality education to a diverse body of students in the Buffalo region of New York State. 
Located in the heart of Buffalo’s downtown business/government sector, the School 
continually provides a rigorous, innovative and enhanced curriculum – highlighting science, 
technology, engineering, and math (STEM) – in order to prepare students for successful 
futures in the global environment. The School obtains its revenue mainly from Charter School 
Basic Tuition from the Buffalo City School District and a few other surrounding school 
districts, in addition to state and federal grants. 

The main programs of the School are as follows: 

REGULAR EDUCATION:  The School's curriculum is focused on science, technology, 
engineering and math. The School maintains high expectations for students and provides 
varied opportunities for students to gain skills necessary to be competitive in the 21st century 
marketplace. 

SPECIAL EDUCATION: The School is open to all children and does not discriminate on the 
basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, disability, or any other grounds that would be 
unlawful or deny the civil rights of any individual. In accordance with the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act, the Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the School provides a free and appropriate education, in the least restrictive 
environment to students with disabilities. The primary service delivery for students with 
special needs is inclusion. Services for students requiring supplemental services are provided 
by the Buffalo City School District. 

OTHER PROGRAMS: Other programs include food services, athletics, and extra-curricular 
activities. 

Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the 
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader. 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	
(Continued)
	

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Presentation
	
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
	
the School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
	
existence and nature of donor restrictions in three classes of net assets: unrestricted,
	
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted. There were no permanently restricted net
	
assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
	

The School also records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or 
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and nature of any donor 
restrictions. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America allow the School to 
treat as unrestricted, any restricted revenue where the restrictions are met in the same year. 
The School has elected to follow that reporting method. As a result, all activities in which 
restrictions are met are recorded in the Unrestricted Net Asset class. 

The following are descriptions of the School's net asset classifications: 

Unrestricted: 
Undesignated: Unrestricted net assets include resources that are available for the general 
support of the School's operations. 

Board Designated: The Board of Trustees has resolved to set aside funds for future 
expansion of the school to grades 1-4. Board designated funds totaled $113,349 at June 
30, 2018 and 2017. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets: Temporarily restricted net assets result from contributions 
subject to donor's restrictions that expire with the passage of time or by actions of the School. 
There were no temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2018.  There was $50,000 of 
temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 restricted for afterschool programs. 

When donor restrictions from prior years expire, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. 

-11-



BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	
(Continued)
	

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Revenue Recognition 
A portion of the School's revenue is derived from grants. Amounts received, but not yet 
earned are reported as deferred revenue. 

Funding sources may, at their discretion, amend the grant and contract amounts.  In addition, 
reimbursement for expenses or return of funds, or both, may be requested as a result of 
noncompliance by the School with the terms of the grants and contracts.  The School records 
such amendments, reimbursements, and returns of funds as an adjustment to revenue in the 
year of the amendment. 

Contributions 
Contributions are recorded at the time of receipt or when evidence of a non-conditional 
promise to give has been received. Promises subject to conditions are not recorded as income 
until those conditions have been met. Contributions that are expected to be received in future 
years are recorded at their present value.  Contributions are recorded as unrestricted, unless 
they are subject to donor restrictions or are required to be used or expected to be received in 
future years. 

Accounts and Grants Receivable 
Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect. Amounts that 
management believes to be uncollectible after collection efforts have been completed are 
written off. In addition, management evaluates the need for, and if appropriate, provides an 
allowance to reduce receivables to amounts management expects will be collected. 
Management determined that no allowances were necessary at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Income Taxes 
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the School is qualified as a charity exempt 
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  As a result, no provision for federal or 
state income taxes has been made. 

Marketing
	
Marketing costs are expensed as incurred.
	

Inventories
	
Inventories consist of school uniforms and are recorded at cost.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	
(Continued)
	

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost.  The School capitalizes property and equipment 
with an estimated life of three years or more and amounts over the following thresholds: 

Cost 
Leasehold Improvements $5,000 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment $2,000 
Computers $5,000 

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment purchased as a bundle greater than $20,000 will be also be 
capitalized and all land and vehicle acquisitions are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization 
is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows: 

Years 
Buildings 40 
Building Improvements 10-20 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 5 
Vehicles 5 
Computers 3 

Depreciation expense amounted to $343,580 and $226,759 for the years ended June 30, 2018 
and 2017, respectively. 

Functional Expenses 
The costs of providing the various program services have been summarized on a functional 
basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated 
among program and supporting services. An immaterial amount of fundraising costs for the 
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are included in management and general expenses. 

Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America established a 
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that 
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives 
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (level 1 measurements), and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described on the next page: 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	
(Continued)
	

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Continued) 
Level 1: Inputs to the valuation method are unadjusted quoted market prices in active 

markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: 	Inputs to the valuation method include: 

! quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
! quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
! inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
! inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable 

market data by correlation or by other means. 
Level 3: Inputs to the valuation method are unobservable and significant to the fair value 

measurement. 

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on 
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation 
techniques used, need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all cash on 
hand and in banks, which at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The School considers 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be 
cash equivalents. Certain of these accounts are not federally insured. The School has not 
experienced any losses in these accounts and does not believe it is exposed to any significant 
credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at June 30: 

Checking 
Savings 
Money Market 

2018 
$ 433,573 

227,925 
75,322 

2017 
$ 670,639 

227,678 
75,209 

Total $ 736,820 $ 973,526 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	
(Continued)
	

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues 
and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could vary 
from those estimates. 

Comparative Financial Information 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in 
total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to 
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with 
the School’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 from which the 
summarized information was derived. 

NOTE 2 - LINE OF CREDIT 

The School has a line of credit with a maximum authorization of $500,000. Advances against 
this line bear interest at a rate of .75% plus prime. Any borrowings are secured by assets of 
the School. There were no amounts outstanding at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

NOTE 3 - SPECIAL EDUCATION AND OTHER SUPPORT 

Special education services required by students of the School are provided by the Buffalo City 
School District. The Buffalo City School District also provided transportation services. The 
School was unable to determine a value for these services, thus, these financial statements do 
not reflect revenue or expenses associated with those services. 

The School receives state aid in the form of textbooks, computer hardware, computer 
software, and library materials through the Buffalo City School District.  The total aid 
received for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $14,128 and $42,918, respectively. 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	
(Continued)
	

NOTE 4 - PENSION EXPENSE
	

The School participates in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (System), a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the New York State 
Teachers' Retirement Board. The System provides retirement, disability, withdrawal, and 
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the 
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York.  

Plan members who joined the System before July 27, 1976 are not required to make 
contributions. Those joining after that date and before January 1, 2010, who have less than ten 
years of service or membership are required to contribute 3% of their annual salary. Those 
joining on or after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012 are required to contribute 3.5% of 
their annual salary for their entire working career. Those joining on or after April 1, 2012 are 
required to contribute between 3% and 6%, dependent upon their salary for their entire 
working career. 

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Rates applicable to the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were 9.8% and 11.72%, respectively. The total 
retirement contribution expense was $299,382 and $253,309 for the years ended June 30, 
2018 and 2017, respectively. 

NOTE 5 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the School entered into an interest rate swap agreement 
(derivative instrument), to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates associated with 
variable interest rate indebtedness on the bond financing. Under such arrangements, a portion 
of variable rate indebtedness is converted to fixed rates based on a notional principal amount. 
The notional principal amount under the interest rate swap agreement, which matures April 
2023, totaled $2,213,842 and $2,590,646 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  

In accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the School recognizes all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and 
measures those instruments at fair value. The School recognizes any change in fair value on 
these agreements as a change in net assets in the period of change. The estimated fair value of 
the interest rate swap agreements was an asset of $28,971 and a liability of $6,377 at June 30, 
2018 and 2017, respectively. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was 
determined using an externally developed model using forward-looking assumptions of 
interest rates and the resulting effect on the underlying cash flows of the interest rate swaps 
(considered Level 3 inputs in the hierarchy as described in Note 1).  The valuations do not 
include adjustments for nonperformance risk on behalf of either party. 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	
(Continued)
	

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30: 

Tax-exempt revenue bonds with the Buffalo and Erie 
County Industrial Land Development Corporation, 
originally in the amount of $3,250,000, net of bond 
acquisition costs of $110,266 and $133,080 at June 
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The bonds bear 
interest at a variable interest rate equal to 67% of the 1 
month USD LIBOR rate.  Variable escalating annual 
principal and interest installment payments are to be 
made in equal monthly installments of approximately 
$40,000 through April 2023. The agreement is 
secured by an irrevocable letter of credit. 

2018 

$ 2,103,576 

2017 

$ 2,457,566 

Bond Acquisition Costs, Net 110,266 133,080 

Less: Current Maturities (459,518) (411,642) 

Long-Term Portion $ 1,754,324 $ 2,179,004 

Maturities of long-term debt for the years after June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Year Amount 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

$ 438,066 
451,944 
466,332 
397,982 

Total $ 1,754,324 

The bond financing requires the School to meet certain restrictive covenants. These covenants 
include a requirement for the School to maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of not 
less than 1.2 or 1.0, calculated as of the end of each fiscal year.  The School was in 
compliance with all of the covenants at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	

June 30, 2018
	
(Continued)
	

NOTE 7 - DONATED SERVICES AND GOODS 

The School receives donated services that, although substantial, do not meet the criteria for 
recording as revenue and expense under accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

NOTE 8  - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 1, 2018, which is the date the 
statements were available for issuance. 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
	

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
	



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School 
Buffalo, New York 

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Buffalo 
Academy of Science Charter School (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the balance sheet as 
of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and functional expenses, and cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated November 1, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Buffalo Academy of 
Science Charter School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a 
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Buffalo Academy of Science Charter 
School's financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Heveron & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 

Rochester, New York 
November 1, 2018 
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

REVENUE AND EXPENSE ANALYSIS
	

June 30
	

YEARS ENDING: 2018 2017 2016 

NUMERIC DATA 

SUPPORT AND REVENUE 

Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment $7,753,840 $5,588,974 $4,714,446 
Revenue - Students with Disabilities 290,969 321,273 298,679 
Special Charter School Aid 195,016 84,114 -
Federal Grants 393,450 279,509 202,239 
State Grants 89,451 158,947 95,455 
Contributions 17,841 60,952 15,002 
Other Income 43,498 34,411 24,209 

Total Support and Revenue 8,784,065 6,528,180 5,350,030 

EXPENSES 

Program Expenses: 
Regular Education 5,778,479 4,216,215 3,619,430 
Special Education 373,022 198,727 241,601 
Other Programs 113,572 55,822 55,670 

Supporting Services: 
Management and General 1,841,529 1,273,610 1,075,939 

Total Expenses 8,106,602 5,744,374 4,992,640 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Loss on Disposal of Assets - - (428,783) 

Total Other Expenses - - (428,783) 

Change in Net Assets $ 677,463 $ 783,806 $ (71,393) 

Prepared by Heveron & Company CPAs
	



BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

TREND ANALYSIS
	

June 30
	

YEARS ENDING: 2018 2017 2016 

BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 736,820 $ 973,526 $1,171,683 
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds 9,451 7,125 10,843 
Accounts Receivable 140,472 63,436 14,477 
Grants Receivable 79,351 45,569 8,523 
Inventory 36,471 16,346 12,974 
Interest Rate Swap Contracts 28,971 - -
Security Deposits 10,480 5,480 5,480 
Fixed Assets, Net 5,706,093 4,625,223 4,082,146 

Total Assets 6,748,109 5,736,705 5,306,126 
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 3,214,635 2,916,042 3,337,628 
Net Assets 3,533,474 2,820,663 1,968,498 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $6,748,109 $5,736,705 $5,306,126 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES SUMMARY 

SUPPORT AND REVENUE $8,784,065 $6,528,180 $5,350,030 
EXPENSES 
Program Expenses: 

Regular Education 5,778,479 4,216,215 3,619,430 
Special Education 373,022 198,727 241,601 
Other Programs 113,572 55,822 55,670 

Supporting Services: 
Management and General 1,841,529 1,273,610 1,075,939 

Total Expenses 8,106,602 5,744,374 4,992,640 
OTHER EXPENSES 

Loss on Disposal of Assets - - (428,783) 

Total Other Expenses - - (428,783) 

Change in Net Assets 677,463 783,806 (71,393) 

Net Assets - Beginning 2,820,663 1,968,498 2,114,627 
Gain/(Loss) on Change in Fair Value 

of Derivative Instruments 35,348 68,359 (74,736) 
Net Assets - Ending $3,533,474 $2,820,663 $1,968,498 

Prepared by Heveron & Company CPAs
	



   

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
	

REVENUE AND EXPENSE ANALYSIS
	

June 30
	

YEARS ENDING: 2018 2017 2016 

PERCENTAGE DATA 

SUPPORT AND REVENUE 

Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment 88.3 85.7 88.0 
Revenue - Students with Disabilities 3.3 4.9 5.6 
Special Charter School Aid 2.2 1.3 -
Federal Grants 4.5 4.3 3.8 
State Grants 1.0 2.4 1.8 
Contributions 0.2 0.9 0.3 
Other Income 0.5 0.5 0.5 

Total Support and Revenue 100.0 100.0 100.0 

EXPENSES AS A PERCENT OF 
SUPPORT AND REVENUE: 

Program Expenses: 
Regular Education 65.8 64.6 67.7 
Special Education 4.2 3.0 4.5 
Other Programs 1.3 0.9 1.0 

Supporting Services: 
Management and General 21.0 19.5 20.1 

Total Expenses 92.3 88.0 93.3 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Loss on Disposal of Asset - - (8.0) 

Total Other Expenses - - (8.0) 

Change in Net Assets 7.7 12.0 (1.3) 

KEY STATISTICS 

Salaries as a % of Total Expenses 58.7 56.5 55.2 
Payroll Overhead as a % of Total Payroll 20.0 22.1 22.9 

Prepared by Heveron & Company CPAs
	



Auditors' Communications
	

October 5, 2018 

To The Board of Trustees 
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School 
190 Franklin Street 
Buffalo, NY 14202 

Dear Board Members: 

This letter is intended only for the board and those responsible for management and governance. Although 
we did review some of your internal controls, we did not perform an examination of them that would allow 
us to give an opinion on the adequacy of your controls. 

Those charged with management and governance are responsible for: 
! safeguarding your assets, 
! ensuring that your resources are used as directed by funders, donors, and as required by charities laws 

and your own articles of incorporation, 
! assuring that you are complying with laws, regulations, contracts and grants associated with your 

funding, 
! properly recording and reporting results of operations and account balances, and 
! proper business practices, operating procedures, documentation and controls. 

Our audit was designed to help you with those responsibilities, and is also designed and intended to help you 
to benchmark your administrative operations to best practices. 

Our Responsibilities to You 
As part of our audit we are required to inform you of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in your 
controls that we become aware of. 

Controls are procedures, policies, and responsibilities that you put in place to make sure that appropriate 
transactions take place and are reported properly on your financial statements.  Examples of controls are 
timely billing for services you perform, ensuring proper payments are received and recorded, and measures to 
prevent overpayment of payroll or vendors. 



Control deficiencies result when proper procedures are not in place to assure that appropriate 
transactions are carried out, recorded and reported properly. 

Significant deficiencies are control deficiencies or combinations of control deficiencies that are less 
severe than material weaknesses, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Material weaknesses are significant deficiencies or combinations of significant deficiencies such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

The Role of Internal Controls 
Internal controls are managements’ standards to safeguard your assets. They include the following 
components: 

! Setting expectations of integrity and ethical conduct, with actions such as proper hiring and 
training, 

! Assessing risks based on your operations and your staffing, 
! Establishing control activities, such as separation of responsibilities, to reduce risks, 
! Communications from senior management to all involved staff about internal controls, and 
! Monitoring - ongoing evaluation of whether controls are appropriate and are working. 

General Observations 

Our general observations are that: 

!	 Your recordkeeping system is appropriate for your financial recording and reporting needs, 
including allocation of revenue and expense to various programs. 

!	 Recordkeeping appears to be done in a timely, complete and conscientious manner. 

!	 Internal controls are good. 

!	 The attitude of management regarding the importance of proper systems and controls seems 
appropriate. 

!	 We did not have disagreements with management in connection with our audits or difficulties in 
performing the audits, and to our knowledge, management did not consult with other CPAs about 
audit issues. 

!	 We did not become aware of fraud or illegal acts, and there were no significant financial statement 
adjustments or unusual transactions. 

!	 No material accounting adjustments were left unrecorded. 

!	 There were no major changes in accounting policies and procedures or in estimating for things 
such as the useful lives of equipment items, bad debts or functional allocations. 



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Sincerely, 

Heveron & Company CPAs
	



October 5. 2018 

To The Finance Committee
 of the Board of Trustees 
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School 
190 Franklin Street 
Buffalo, NY 14202 

Dear Committee Members: 

In addition to the required communications that we included in a separate letter, we have some 
observations about financial trends, internal controls, and best practices. 

Trends 

Comparative financial information and trends for the current and prior two years are also enclosed.  This 
information should assist you in analyzing your financial results, and may be useful for budgeting and 
planning. Significant trends that we noted include: 

! Cash decreased $235,000 and $198,157 from 2017 and 2016, respectively. You do have positive 
cash flow from operations. However, you are using your cash reserve to fund renovations on your 
two buildings. 

! As a result of the renovations on your buildings, building and improvements increased $830,000. 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment also increased $590,000. This is due to the need to purchase 
equipment for new grade levels that were recently added. 

! Teachers that have selected to receive their paycheck spread over 26 paychecks, receive a balloon 
payment at the end of the year equal to four paychecks. In prior years, this payment has been made 
prior to year end. For the year ended June 30, 2018, this payment was made in the first week of July. 
As a result, accrued payroll and benefits increased $550,000. 

! As you continue to add grade levels, your income and related expenses also increase. Total income 
increased $2,250,000 and total expenses increased $2,360,000 over the prior year. 



             

Control Deficiencies 

!	 Currently, the individual who submits the final payroll has the ability to make payroll changes. 
Someone independent of payroll preparation should compare the final report to the preliminary 
approved report to ensure there were no changes made. Any questionable items noted should be 
investigated. Payroll is your largest cost and this is an important control to help assure that pay 
rates and the payroll hours you are paying for are proper. 

Please contact us if you have any questions about this letter or if we can help in any other way. 

Sincerely, 

Heveron & Company CPAs
	



       
    

           
   

   
   
   

   
    
   
   

 
 

           

         
              

  
        

              
            

             
            

  

           

 

  

   

   

  

Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 
for NYCDoE Authorized Charter Schools 

School Name: Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School 
Date (Report is due Nov. 1): -

School Fiscal Contact Name: Jay Ornek 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: Heveron&Company 
School Audit Contact Name: Jeanne Beutner 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: -
Prior Year: -

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and
�
Functional Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the
�
items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school
�
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter
�
response will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of
�
the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter SUBMITTED 

Management Letter Response SUBMITTED 

Form 990 STILL IN PROCESS 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) N/A 

Corrective Action Plan N/A 



         
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

 

 
 

Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
 
Statement of Financial Position
 

as of June 30
 

2018 2017 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

736,820 
79,351 

140,472 
-
-

36,471 
993,114 

5,706,093 
9,451 

10,480 
28,971 

5,754,995 

6,748,109 

$ 

973,526 
45,569 
63,436 

-
-

16,346 
1,098,877 

4,625,223 
7,125 
5,480 
-

4,637,828 

5,736,705 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

183,520 
916,045 
459,518 

-
-
-

11,494 
1,570,577 

1,644,058 
-
-
-

1,644,058 

3,214,635 

84,082 
358,834 
411,642 

-
-
-

9,183 
863,741 

2,045,924 
-
-

6,377 
2,052,301 

2,916,042 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

3,533,474 
-
-

2,770,663 
50,000 

-



   

       

TOTAL NET ASSETS 3,533,474 2,820,663
 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 6,748,109 5,736,705
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Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
 

Statement of Activities
 

as of June 30
 

2018 2017 

Unrestricted Temporarily Total Total 
Restricted 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

EXPENSES 
Program Services
�

Regular Education
�
Special Education
�
Other Programs
�

Total Program Services 
Management and general 

7,948,856 -$ $ 
290,969 -

393,450 -
89,451 -
43,498 -

8,766,224 -

5,778,479 -$ $ 
373,022 -
113,572 -

6,265,073 -
1,841,529 -

Fundraising -
TOTAL EXPENSES 8,106,602 -

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 659,622 -

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income $ 
Contributions and Grants 67,841 
Fundraising Support - -
Investments - -
Donated Services - -
Other Support and Revenue 35,348 -

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 103,189 (50,000) 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal $ - $ - $ 
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 727,463 (50,000) 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,770,663 50,000 $ 
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - -

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 3,533,474 $ - $ 

0 $ -
(50,000) 

7,948,856 
290,969 

-
393,450 

89,451 
43,498 

-
8,766,224 

5,778,479 
373,022 
113,572 

6,265,073 
1,841,529 

-
8,106,602 

659,622 

-
17,841 

-
-
-

35,348 
53,189 

-

677,463 

2,820,663 
-

3,498,126 

5,673,088 
321,273 

-
279,509 
158,947 

34,411 
-

6,467,228 

4,216,215 
198,727 

55,822 
4,470,764 
1,273,610 

-
5,744,374 

722,854 

0 
60,952 

-
-
-

68,359 
129,311 

$ -

852,165 

1,968,498 
-

$ 2,820,663 





         
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

   
        

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ - $ -
Revenues from School Districts 8,147,859 5,960,332 
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation - -
Grants Receivable 410,518 358,493 
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses - -
Accounts Payable - -
Accrued Expenses - -
Accrued Liabilities - -
Contributions and fund-raising activities 17,841 60,952 
Miscellaneous sources 43,498 34,411 
Deferred Revenue - -
Interest payments - -
Payments to vendors (-) (1,664,353) (1,237,670) 
Payments to Charter School Personnel for Services Rendered (-) (5,390,816) (4,205,972) 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,564,547 $ 970,546 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ $ 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (1,424,449) $ (769,835) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt
�
Other
�

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ (376,804) $ (398,868) 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ (236,706) $ (198,157) 
Cash at beginning of year 973,526 1,171,683 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 736,820 $ 973,526 

(1,424,449) (769,835) 
- -

$ $ 
(376,804) (398,868) 

- -



         
     
     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 

   

  
 

 

 

 

Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
 
Statement of Functional Expenses
 

as of June 30
 

2018 

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 
Education 

Other 
Education 

Total 
Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

Total 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Travel/parking 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 

7 
65 
36 

108.00 

$ 
-

3,216,497 
345,206 

3,561,703 
617,933 
232,864 

-
-
-
-

-
138,280 

79,342 
101,043 
179,631 

21 
70,765 
44,796 

-
60,945 

-

$ 
-

195,216 
-

195,216 
66,923 
19,116 

-
-
-
-

-
9,219 
5,056 
6,736 

-
-

2,263 
-

2,564 
-

$ 
-

12,265 
-

12,265 
1,001 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-

$ 
-

3,423,978 
345,206 

3,769,184 
685,857 
251,980 

-
-
-
-

-
147,499 

84,398 
107,779 
179,631 

21 
70,765 
47,059 

-
63,509 

-

$ 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-

$ 
496,378 

65,881 
429,611 
991,870 
201,734 

47,402 
-

17,138 
16,453 

-

-
45,198 
21,889 
27,698 
41,318 
45,578 
19,114 

4,527 
49,842 

134,863 
-

$ 
496,378 

65,881 
429,611 
991,870 
201,734 

47,402 
-

17,138 
16,453 

-

-
45,198 
21,889 
27,698 
41,318 
45,578 
19,114 

4,527 
49,842 

134,863 
-

Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
Interest 
Professional Development 
OTHER 

54,184 
-

309,689 
115,728 

211,555 

-
-
-

5,010 

60,919 

100,306 
-
-

-

154,490 
-

309,689 
120,738 

272,474 

-
-
-

-

16,500 
20,085 
33,891 

2,282 

104,147 

16,500 
20,085 
33,891 

2,282 

104,147 
Total Expenses $ 5,778,479 $ 373,022 $ 113,572 $ 6,265,073 $ - $ 1,841,529 $ 1,841,529 



Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30

2018

  

         
     
     

2017

 Total 

$ 
496,378 

3,489,859 
774,817 

4,761,054 
887,591 
299,382 

-
17,138 
16,453 

-

$ 
384,802 

2,389,997 
472,915 

3,247,714 
668,382 
253,309 

-
27,532 
14,920 

-

$ 

-
192,697 
106,287 
135,477 
220,949 

45,599 
89,879 
51,586 
49,842 

198,372 
-

170,990 
20,085 

343,580 
123,020 

376,621 
8,106,602 $ 

-
102,214 

74,482 
62,820 

167,777 
20,655 
80,533 
63,995 
84,837 

117,309 
-

114,769 
21,175 

226,759 
139,813 

255,379 
5,744,374 
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Auditors' Communications
	

October 5, 2018
	

To The Board of Trustees
	
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
	
190 Franklin Street
	
Buffalo, NY 14202
	

Dear Board Members:
	

This letter is intended only for the board and those responsible for management and governance. Although
	
we did review some of your internal controls, we did not perform an examination of them that would allow
	
us to give an opinion on the adequacy of your controls. 


Those charged with management and governance are responsible for: 

 safeguarding your assets,
	
 ensuring that your resources are used as directed by funders, donors, and as required by charities laws
	

and your own articles of incorporation, 

 assuring that you are complying with laws, regulations, contracts and grants associated with your 

funding, 

 properly recording and reporting results of operations and account balances, and 

 proper business practices, operating procedures, documentation and controls. 

Our audit was designed to help you with those responsibilities, and is also designed and intended to help you 
to benchmark your administrative operations to best practices. 

Our Responsibilities to You 
As part of our audit we are required to inform you of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in your 
controls that we become aware of. 

Controls are procedures, policies, and responsibilities that you put in place to make sure that appropriate 
transactions take place and are reported properly on your financial statements.  Examples of controls are 
timely billing for services you perform, ensuring proper payments are received and recorded, and measures to 
prevent overpayment of payroll or vendors. 



Control deficiencies result when proper procedures are not in place to assure that appropriate 
transactions are carried out, recorded and reported properly. 

Significant deficiencies are control deficiencies or combinations of control deficiencies that are less 
severe than material weaknesses, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Material weaknesses are significant deficiencies or combinations of significant deficiencies such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

The Role of Internal Controls 
Internal controls are managements’ standards to safeguard your assets. They include the following 
components: 

	 Setting expectations of integrity and ethical conduct, with actions such as proper hiring and 

training, 

 Assessing risks based on your operations and your staffing, 

 Establishing control activities, such as separation of responsibilities, to reduce risks, 

 Communications from senior management to all involved staff about internal controls, and 

 Monitoring - ongoing evaluation of whether controls are appropriate and are working. 

General Observations 

Our general observations are that: 

	 Your recordkeeping system is appropriate for your financial recording and reporting needs, 
including allocation of revenue and expense to various programs. 

	 Recordkeeping appears to be done in a timely, complete and conscientious manner. 

	 Internal controls are good. 

	 The attitude of management regarding the importance of proper systems and controls seems 
appropriate. 

	 We did not have disagreements with management in connection with our audits or difficulties in 

performing the audits, and to our knowledge, management did not consult with other CPAs about 

audit issues. 

	 We did not become aware of fraud or illegal acts, and there were no significant financial statement 

adjustments or unusual transactions. 

	 No material accounting adjustments were left unrecorded. 

	 There were no major changes in accounting policies and procedures or in estimating for things 
such as the useful lives of equipment items, bad debts or functional allocations. 



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Sincerely, 

Heveron & Company CPAs 



        

  

KeyBank Business Banking StatementP.O. Clev Box 93885eland, OH 44101-5885 June 30, 2018page 1 of 2
750679042 

31 T 928 00000 R EM AOBUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER Questions or commentSCHOOL Call our Key Business Resource Centers? 190 FRANKLIN ST 1-888-KEY4BIZ (1-888-539-4249)BUFFALO NY 14202-2407 

Enroll in Online Banking today at Key.com.
 Access your available accounts, transfer funds and view your transactions right from your PC.
 
Key Business Silver Money Market SvgsBUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER Beginning balance 5-31-18 $75,344.05 SCHOOL Interest paid +9.29 Ending balance 6-30-18 $75,353.34 
Interestearned Annual percentage yield (APY) earned 0.15% Number of days this statement period 30Interest paid 6-29-18 $9.29 Interest earned this statement period $9.28 Interest paid year-to-date $56.03 

 - 03290 5390 

http:75,353.34
http:75,344.05


        

  

KeyBank Business Banking StatementP.O. Clev Box 93885eland, OH 44101-5885 July 31, 2018page 1 of 2
750679042 

31 T 928 00000 R EM AOBUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER Questions or commentSCHOOL Call our Key Business Resource Centers? 190 FRANKLIN ST 1-888-KEY4BIZ (1-888-539-4249)BUFFALO NY 14202-2407 

Enroll in Online Banking today at Key.com.
 Access your available accounts, transfer funds and view your transactions right from your PC.
 
Key Business Silver Money Market SvgsBUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER Beginning balance 6-30-18 $75,353.34 SCHOOL Interest paid +9.60 Ending balance 7-31-18 $75,362.94 
Interestearned Annual percentage yield (APY) earned 0.15% Number of days this statement period 31Interest paid 7-31-18 $9.60 Interest earned this statement period $9.60 Interest paid year-to-date $65.63 

4352 

http:75,362.94
http:75,353.34


        

  

KeyBank Business Banking StatementP.O. Clev Box 93885eland, OH 44101-5885 August 31, 2018page 1 of 2
750679042 

31 T 928 00000 R EM AOBUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER Questions or commentSCHOOL Call our Key Business Resource Centers? 190 FRANKLIN ST 1-888-KEY4BIZ (1-888-539-4249)BUFFALO NY 14202-2407 

Enroll in Online Banking today at Key.com.
 Access your available accounts, transfer funds and view your transactions right from your PC.
 
Key Business Silver Money Market SvgsBUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER Beginning balance 7-31-18 $75,362.94 SCHOOL 1 Addition +138.30 Interest paid +9.61 Ending balance 8-31-18 $75,510.85 
Additions Deposits Date Serial # Source 8-28 Key Capture Deposit $138.30Total additions $138.30 Interestearned Annual percentage yield (APY) earned 0.15% Number of days this statement period 31Interest paid 8-31-18 $9.61 Interest earned this statement period $9.60 Interest paid year-to-date $75.24 

032904207 

http:75,510.85
http:75,362.94
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2017-2018 

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 

Actual Student Enrollment 
Total Paid Student Enrollment 

7,883,514 1,060,483 150,632 - -
9,246,736 - - - -

(1,363,222) 1,060,483 150,632 - -
549 

-
59 

-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR MANAGEMENT & 
EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
District of Location 

BUFFALO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT $13,005.32 7,605,159 - - - -
LACKAWANNA SCHOOL DISTRICT $12,967.76 70,871 
CHEEKTOWAGA CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT $11,164.40 30,508 
CHEEKTOWAGA SLOAN SCHOOL DISTRICT $12,943.84 17,685 
CLEVELAND HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT $11,365.12 15,528 
NIAGARA FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT $11,925.00 16,293 
LOCKPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT $10,831.60 29,598 
WEST SENECA SCHOOL DISTRICT $11,106.16 15,174 
GRAND ISLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT $10,831.60 14,799 
ELLICOTTVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT $12,470.64 17,039 
AMHERST SCHOOL DISTRICT $11,669.84 15,944 
SWEETHOME SCHOOL DISTRICT $12,952.16 17,696 
EVANS-BRANT CSD (LAKE SHORE) $12,602.72 17,219 

- - - - -
7,883,514 

Special Education Revenue - 477,900 - - -
Grants 

Stimulus
�

Other
�
Other State Revenue
�

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

-
-
-

7,883,514 

-
-

167,200 
645,100 

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs - $75,059 - - -
Title I - $313,254 - - -
Title Funding - Other - $27,070 - - -
School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - - - -
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation - - - - -
Other - - - - -

Other Federal Revenue - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 415,383 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
Other Local Revenue 

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

$58,000 

$31,000 
$1,500 

-
-

$55,132 
$5,000 

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL 

326,038 - - - -
1,017,738 - - - -

412,258 - - - -
1,756,034 

7,883,514 1,060,483 150,632 - -
9,246,736 - - - -

(1,363,222) 1,060,483 150,632 - -
549 59 

- -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 150,632 

TOTAL REVENUE 7,883,514 1,060,483 150,632 

EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00 103,500 - - - -
Instructional Management 2.00 160,697 - - - -
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 2.00 135,000 - - - -
CFO / Director of Finance 1.00 76,308 - - - -
Operation / Business Manager - - - - - -
Administrative Staff - - - - - -

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 6 475,505 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 31.00 1,359,733 - - - -
Teachers - SPED 5.00 211,697 - - - -
Substitute Teachers 4.00 95,564 - - - -
Teaching Assistants 16.00 578,858 - - - -
Specialty Teachers 10.00 472,610 - - - -
Aides - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 4.00 195,298 - - - -
Other 3.00 153,528 - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 73 3,067,288 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse 2.00 80,500 - - - -
Librarian 1.00 17,670 - - - -
Custodian 2.00 70,314 - - - -
Security 4.00 83,632 - - - -
Other 10.00 467,026 - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 19 719,143 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 98 4,261,935 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 
Retirement / Pension 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 6,017,970 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit 15,500 - - - -
Legal 20,000 - - - -
Management Company Fee - - - - -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2017-2018 
July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 
REGULAR 

EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 



 
    

 
  

    
     

  - - - -

 
 

     
    

  
   

  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  - - - -

   

     
   

  

    - - - -

  
     

 - - - -

 

     
   

      
                        

  

 
 

 
  

   

  

 
 

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2017-2018 

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 

Actual Student Enrollment 
Total Paid Student Enrollment 

7,883,514 1,060,483 150,632 - -
9,246,736 - - - -

(1,363,222) 1,060,483 150,632 - -
549 

-
59 

-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR MANAGEMENT & 
EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

Nurse Services 
Food Service / School Lunch 
Payroll Services 
Special Ed Services 
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 

2,400 
-

36,324 

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

- - - - -
- - - - -

162,000 
236,224 

- - - -

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 
Textbooks / Workbooks 
Supplies & Materials other 
Equipment / Furniture 
Telephone 
Technology 
Student Testing & Assessment 
Field Trips 
Transportation (student) 
Student Services - other 
Office Expense 
Staff Development 
Staff Recruitment 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 
School Meals / Lunch 
Travel (Staff) 
Fundraising 
Other 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

5,000 
87,000 

-
76,163 
34,700 

577,445 
89,015 
38,848 

-
-

78,064 
132,838 

13,000 
25,000 

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

6,985 - - - -
- - - - -

380,067 
1,544,125 

- - - -

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance
�

Janitorial
�
Building and Land Rent / Lease
�

Repairs & Maintenance
�

Equipment / Furniture
�

Security
�

Utilities
�

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

75,835 
21,000 

412,711 
785,430 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

53,134 - - - -
17,000 - - - -
83,308 

1,448,418 
- - - -

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - - -
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 9,246,736 

NET INCOME (1,363,222) 1,060,483 150,632 - -



          

   
     
    
     
     
     
     
    
     
     
    
    
    
     

 

  

  

     
   

      
                        

  

 
 

 
  

   

  

 
 

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2017-2018 

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 

Actual Student Enrollment 
Total Paid Student Enrollment 

7,883,514 1,060,483 150,632 - -
9,246,736 - - - -

(1,363,222) 1,060,483 150,632 - -
549 

-
59 

-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

District of Location 
BUFFALO CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LACKAWANNA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHEEKTOWAGA CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHEEKTOWAGA SLOAN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CLEVELAND HILL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NIAGARA FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LOCKPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
WEST SENECA SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GRAND ISLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ELLICOTTVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
AMHERST SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SWEETHOME SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EVANS-BRANT CSD (LAKE SHORE) 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

526 
5 
3 
1 
1 
1 
3 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

549 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 

59 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

59 

TOTAL ENROLLED 

-
585 

5 
3 
1 
1 
1 
3 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
-

608 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 14,354 17,974 248 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 16,836 - -



BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2017-2018

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

 

     
  

     

 
 

     

  
  

     
   

      
                        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note 
assumptions when applicable 

TOTAL 

9,094,629 
9,246,736 
(152,106) 

-
-

TOTAL 

-
7,605,159 

70,871 
30,508 
17,685 
15,528 
16,293 
29,598 
15,174 
14,799 
17,039 
15,944 
17,696 
17,219 

-
7,883,514 

477,900 

-
-

167,200 Additional funding calculated $275 per student 
8,528,614 

75,059 IDEA 
313,254 Title I 

27,070 Title IIA 
-

-
-
-

415,383 

58,000 Cullen Foundation ($50,000) and STEM Program 
Sponsorships($8,000)

31,000 E-Rate 
1,500 

-
-

55,132 Textbook and Software-Hardware 
5,000 Misc Other income 



BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2017-2018

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

         

 
   

    

 
   

  
  

     
     

  
 
  

 
        

 

     
  

     
   

      
                        

150,632 

9,094,629 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

103,500 School Director 
160,697 Principals for each building 
135,000 Deans of Students - 2 

76,308 CFO 
-
-

475,505 

1,359,733 31 teachers 
211,697 5 special ed teachers 

95,564 
578,858 16 teaching assistants 
472,610 10 specialty teachers 

-
195,298 2 Guidance Counselor, 2 Social Worker 
153,528 2 Curriculum Coordinator, 1 STEM Coordinator 

3,067,288 

80,500 2 School Nurses 
17,670 1 Librarian 
70,314 2 Custodial Staff 
83,632 Hall Monitors 

467,026 Admissions Officer, 2 IT Coordinators, 1 Operations, 1 HR 
Coordinator719,143 

4,261,935 

326,038 
1,017,738 

412,258 
1,756,034 

6,017,970 

15,500 
20,000 

-

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note 
assumptions when applicable 

TOTAL 

9,094,629 
9,246,736 
(152,106) 

-
-

TOTAL 



BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2017-2018

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

  

  

  

  

 

     
  

     
   

      
                        

2,400 
-

36,324 
-
-

162,000 
236,224 

5,000 
87,000 General Educational Supplies 

-
76,163 
34,700 

577,445 
89,015 
38,848 

-
-

78,064 
132,838 

13,000 
25,000 

-
-
-

6,985 
-

380,067 Summer school, advertisement 
1,544,125 

75,835 
21,000 

412,711 Montly mortgage payments 
785,430 

53,134 Additional building repairs&maintenance 
17,000 
83,308 

1,448,418 

- Depreciation 
-

9,246,736 

(152,106) 

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note 
assumptions when applicable 

TOTAL 

9,094,629 
9,246,736 
(152,106) 

-
-

TOTAL 



BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2017-2018

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

 

     
  

     
   

      
                        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note 
assumptions when applicable 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

9,094,629 
9,246,736 
(152,106) 

-
-



  
 2011-12 Grade 

Level 
Max 
Enrol 

Budget
Enrol 

Total 
FTE 

Total 
Teacher 

TOTAL 
INCOME TOTAL EXPENSE PAYROLL & 

TAX BENEFIT 
TOTAL 

FACILITY 
COST 

NET 
PROFIT 
2011-12 

1 K-12 552 



 

  BEGINING 
BALANCE 

Free 
Reduce 

Student 
/

Total 
FTE 13 

Student 
/

Teacher 
17 

Payroll
<%60 

Facili 
ty
<%15 

INCOME/ Tot
FTE 

Income/
Student 

Expense 
/

Student 
Rent 

Payment 
Utilitie 

s 
Repair &

Maintenance 



        
  

 

 
 

          
 
 
 
 

 
        

                 
 

            
              

 

    

    
 

 
              
       

 

           
      

 

 
 

             
         

 

     
 

           
      

 
 

           
              

             
           

                
      

          
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

   
   

 

   
  

  
 
  

 

 
 

    
    

  
 

  
     

   
  
    

  

  

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
 
Education Corporation Trustee
 

Trustee Name: Selcuk Acar 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name: Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School 

1.	 List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Member of the Board of Trustees 

President of the Board of Trustees 

2. 	 Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
Yes x No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. 	 Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

Yes x No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. 	 Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

09/09/2013-
06/26/2014 

My wife worked for 
the BASCS as a 
part-time school 
counselor 

Employment starter 
before my tenure and I 

was not involved in 
hiring or termination 
process in terms of 

voting or else. 

Nur Cayirdag Acar 



P l e a s e  w r i t e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k . 
 
  
 
  

5.  Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in 
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your 
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest 
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an 
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the 
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the 
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship 
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write 
None. 

 

P l e a s e w r i t e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k . 
Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

 
 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

 
none 

    

 

 

 

 

 
Signature Date  07/31/2017 

 
Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

 

Business Tele  
 

Business Addr
 

E-mail Addre  
 

Home Teleph  
 

Home Addres  



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

 

 
 

Trustee Name:       David J. Banks 
 
 
 
 

 
Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 

the Charter School Name: Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School 
 
 
 
 

1.  List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 

parent representative). Member of the Board of Trustees 
 

 
2.  Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

  Yes   x No 
 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

 

 
 

3.  Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

 

  Yes  x  No 
 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

 
 

4.  Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your 
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month 
period  prior  to  such  service.  If  there  has  been  no  such  financial  interest  or 
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

 
 

Date(s) 
 

 

none 

Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 



P l e a s e  w r i t e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k . 

none 

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None.

P l e a s e w r i t e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .
Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

none 

Signature Date  July 30, 2017 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: _____________________________________________________ 

E-mail Address:

Home Telephon

Home Address: 
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5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None. 

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

Pleas write "No e" if applic ble. Do not leave this s ace blank. 
A) Or\

Sign Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telep

Business Addr

E-mail Address

Home Telepho

Home Address

07/31/2017





Pleose writ 'fv�ONJfl:.Plica Pie. Do not leave tr is space h/ank.

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None.

Organization 
conducting 

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

PI ea s i,.· 1 I[ e ,\ o I e" if aµ p I I cc In e. Do not I ea l1 e th i:, s I ace b I an k. 
�otJE 

i/1/ I7 
Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be re

Business Telephon

Business Address:
 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address:



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee  

Trustee Name: 

________________________________________________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name):  

________________________________________________________________ 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer,
parent representative).

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
____Yes  ____No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation?

____Yes ____No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

Member (current) 
President of the Board (formerly)

Murat Demirbas

Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School

X

X



5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
None.

________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature       Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted.  

Business Telep

Business Addre

E-mail Address:

Home Telephon

Home Address:

Organization 
conducting 
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the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with 

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

P l e a s e  w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e .  D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k .

P l e a s e w r i t e “ N o n e ” i f a p p l i c a b l e .  D o n o t l e a v e t h i s s p a c e b l a n k . 

None

None

7/21/2017
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Entry	8	BOT	Table
Created:	07/24/2018	•	Last	updated:	07/30/2018

1.	Current	Board	Member	Information	(Enter	info	for	each	BOT	member)

Trustee
Name
and
Email
Address

Position
on	the
Board

Committ
ee
Affiliation
s

Voting
Member
Per	By-
Laws
(Y/N)

Number
of	Terms
Served

Start
Date	of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

End	Date
of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

Board
Meetings
Attended
During
2017-18

1

Dr.	Murat
Demirbas Trustee/M

ember

Governan
ce	&
Strategic
Planning

Yes 5 10/01/20
16

09/30/20
19 5	or	less

2

Dr.
Mustafa
Gokcek Secretary

Governan
ce	&
Strategic
Planning

Yes 5 11/01/20
17

10/31/20
20 8

3

Dr.	David
Banks	 Trustee/M

ember
Academic
Committ
ee

Yes 3 12/01/20
17

11/30/20
20 5	or	less

4

Dr.	Tevfik
Kosar	

Treasurer
Finance
Committ
ee

Yes 3 08/01/20
17

07/31/20
20 9

5

Dr.
Selcuk
Acar	

Chair
Academic
Committ
ee Yes 2 02/01/20

17
01/31/20
20 6

6

7

8

9
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1a.	Are	there	more	that	9
members	of	the	Board	of
Trustees?

No

2.	Total	number	of	members	on
June	30,	2018

5

3.	Total	number	of	members
joining	the	Board	during	the
2017-18	school	year

0

4.	Total	number	of	members
departing	the	Board	during	the
2017-18	school	year

0

5.	Number	of	voting	members	in
2017-18,	as	set	by	the	by-laws,
resolution	or	minutes

5

6.	Number	of	Board	meetings
conducted	during	the	2017-18
School	Year

9

7.	Number	of	Board	meetings
scheduled	for	the	coming	2018-
19	school	year

12

Thank	you.
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Entry	9	-	Board	Meeting	Minutes
Created:	07/27/2018	•	Last	updated:	08/08/2018

Are	all	monthly	BOT	meeting
minutes	posted,	which	should
match	the	number	of	meetings
held	during	2017-18	school	year,
on	the	charter	school's	website?	

the	charter	school's	website.

Yes

A.	Provide	if	posted	on	the
charter	school's	website	a	URL
link	to	the	Monthly	Board
Meeting	Minutes,	which	should
match	the	number	of	meetings
held	during	the	2017-18	school
year.

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1MHO2Vg6vJECZgNKcHI
yDt1opM5jVJXaU

Instructions	for	submitting	minutes	of	the	BOT	monthly	meetings	
Regents,	NYCDOE,	and	Buffalo	BOE	authorized	schools	must	either	provide	a	link	to	a	complete	set	of
minutes	that	are	posted	on	the	charter	school	website,	or	upload	a	complete	set	of	board	meeting
minutes	from	July	2017--June	2018,	which	should	match	the	number	of	meetings	held	during	the	2017-18
school	year.

BUFFALO	ACAD	OF	SCIENCE	CS	(REGENTS)

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1MHO2Vg6vJECZgNKcHIyDt1opM5jVJXaU
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Entry	10	Enrollment	and	Retention	of	Special
Populations
Created:	07/24/2018	•	Last	updated:	07/25/2018

Instructions	for	Reporting	Enrollment	and	Retention	Strategies
Describe	the	efforts	the	charter	school	has	made	in	2017-18	toward	meeting	targets	to	attract	and	retain
enrollment	of	students	with	disabilities,	English	language	learners,	and	students	who	are	economically
disadvantaged.	In	addition,	describe	the	school’s	plans	for	meeting	or	making	progress	toward	meeting
its	enrollment	and	retention	targets	in	2018-19.

BUFFALO	ACAD	OF	SCIENCE	CS	(REGENTS)Section	Heading

Recruitment/Attraction	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Recruitment	Efforts	in	2017-18 Describe	Recruitment	Plans	in	2018-19)

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

Buffalo	Academy	is	located	in	the	inner	city
downtown	area.	Most	of	our	students	come
from	disadvantage	parts	of	the	city	like	the
East	Side,	west	side,	and	ETC	.	We	go	to
community	centers	around	the	Buffalo	area
to	try	and	spread	awareness	of	the
advantages	we	have	at	our	school.	Not	only
do	I	target	community	centers	in	the	Buffalo
area,	but	I	also	go	to	other	schools	to	do
presentations	about	BuffSci's	curriculum.	Our
school	offers	a	lot	of	academic	help	which
really	grabs	the	attention	of	students	from
disadvantage	areas	around	the	city

Our	plan	to	meeting	the	same	target	for
Recruitment	in	2018-19,	would	be	targeting
areas	that	we	know	house	a	large	population
of	disadvantage	students.	Going	to
community	centers	and	other	schools	around
the	inner	city	Buffalo	area,	really	helps	grab
the	attention	of	all	the	citizen	in	the
disadvantage	areas.	We	try	to	bring
awareness	to	every	area	in	the	city	of
Buffalo.	I	present	what	programs	we	have
such	as;	Academic	support,	Saturday	school,
and	other	academic	programs	that	are	held
after	school.	Not	to	mention,	our	system	is	a
blind	lottery	process.	All	we	ask	is	that	you
apply	and	if	you	get	in,	you're	our	student	no
matter	what.	This	makes	the	student	feel
more	confident	when	applying.	There	is	no
interview	process	which	really	cuts	down	on
bias	selections	of	students	.	We	don't	go	by
where	you	live,	what	your	grades	are,	all	we
ask	is	that	when	you	become	our	student
you	make	the	best	out	of	your	situation.

BuffSci	has	a	very	diverse	community	of
students.	Our	ESL	program	welcomes	all
students	from	different	areas	of	the	world!	To
recruit	for	our	ESL	population,	I	try	to	target
the	Buffalo	Public	Schools	only	because	that
is	where	a	lot	of	our	refugee's	are	placed	for
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English
Langua
ge
Learner
s

school.	This	is	because	most	of	them	are	not
aware	of	our	Charter	school's	in	Buffalo.	So
we	make	it	a	point	to	go	and	do
presentation's	in	order	to	bring	awareness	to
that	part	of	the	community.	When	I	go	to	the
presentations	I	talk	a	lot	about	our	ESL
program	because	our	staff	is	very	dedicated
to	teaching	them	English.	BuffSci	prides	on
it's	diversity,	so	keeping	our	ESL	program	not
only	benefits	our	school's	community,	but	it
also	benefits	our	Buffalo	Community	because
it	spreads	awareness	throughout	the	city	due
to	parents	talking	to	one	another.	Our
parents	at	BuffSci	are	our	biggest	advocates
and	when	it	comes	to	ESL,	they	bring	even
more	awareness	to	their	friends	and	family
because	of	how	close	that	community	is.	I	try
very	hard	to	build	relationships	with	our
current	ESL	parents	because	then	they	tell
their	communities	about	the	good	we	do
here	at	BuffSci.

For	the	2018-19	school	year,	I	again	will
target	our	current	parents	and	build
relationships	with	them	in	order	to	find	new
ESL	students	for	BuffSci.	Not	only	do	I	talk
with	parents,	but	I	also	talk	with	the	students
and	ask	if	they	have	any	siblings	or	friend
looking	for	a	long	time	school.	Targeting
community	centers	in	their	communities
have	also	been	proven	effective	because	by
spreading	awareness	at	the	facilities	they
use,	it	has	given	me	great	results	in	finding
new	and	bright	ESL	students.

Student
s	with
Disabilit
ies

At	BuffSci,	we	do	not	offer	any	classes	6:11
and	above.	Though	we	don't	offer	those
services,	that	doesn't	mean	that	we	don'	t
accept	them,	because	we	do.	What	we	do	is,
sit	down	in	a	meeting	with	the	parents	and
ask	if	its	okay	if	we	come	up	with	a	plan	to
try	to	meet	the	requirements	the	students
needs,	even	though	we	don't	offer	those
services.	The	plan	may	be	different	than
what	the	parent	is	used	to	coming	from	a
6:11	or	a	12:11,	but	that	doesn't	mean	we
turn	students	away	just	because	we	don't
offer	a	service	thats	needed.	We	try	to	make
something	close	to	it,	without	actually	have
the	full	service	of	a	6:11	classroom	setting.
As	long	as	the	parent	is	okay	with	that	then
we	can	take	the	child	on	as	a	student.

At	BuffSci	for	the	2018-19,	I	targeted	again
more	community	centers	and	schools	that
offer	6:11	and	above	services.	I	tell	the
parents	and	schools	during	my
presentations,	that	even	though	we	don't
offer	the	service,	doesn't	mean	we	can't
make	a	plan	to	try	and	meet	the	same	goals.
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Retention	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Retention	Efforts	in	2017-18 Describe	Retention	Plans	in	2018-19)

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

At	BuffSci,	most	of	our	events	are	free	of
charge.	We	do	a	lot	of	positive
reinforcement.	For	example,	when	a	student
has	a	specific	GPA,	they	are	able	to	dress
down,	attend	field	trips,	and	other	events
happening	around	BuffSci.	Not	only	do	we	do
field	trips,	but	we	do	a	lot	of	college	tours	to
keep	our	students	interested	and	thinking
about	their	academic	future

In	2018-19,	we	try	to	make	our	students
recognize	that	they	are	part	of	our	BuffSci
Family.	We	treat	them	as	one	of	our	own	and
there	is	no	problem	too	big	that	we	can't	help
solve.	The	help	with	positive	reinforcement
and	building	relationships	with	the	parents
really	helps	keep	our	students	with	us	from
middle	school	all	the	way	through	their	High
School	Career.

English
Langua
ge
Learner
s

BuffSci	offers	a	lot	of	ESL	services	and	I	think
thats	what	really	keeps	them	focused.	Not
only	do	we	offer	the	services	they	need,	but
our	teachers	do	a	great	job	at	working	with
them	and	making	sure	that	they	are
obtaining	the	material	they	are	working	with.

In	2018-2019,	our	ESL	teachers	gave	them
the	materials	they	needed	and	kept	working
with	them	throughout	the	year.	The	services
are	provided	and	our	teachers	are	diligent
when	it	comes	to	our	students	retaining	the
information	they're	learning.

Student
s	with
Disabilit
ies

Our	SPED	students	have	all	the	services	they
need.	They	can	be	pulled	out	of	class,	they
can	receive	extra	time	for	testing	and	ETC.

For	the	2018-19	school	year,	again	our	SPED
students	will	receive	the	services	they	need
as	listed	previously.	Our	SPED	teachers	work
hard	to	make	sure	the	students	are	grasping
the	assignment	and	are	able	to	move	on	to
the	next	section.
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Entry	11	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator
Attrition
Created:	07/24/2018	•	Last	updated:	07/27/2018

Report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing.

Instructions	for	completing	the	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition	Tables
Charter	schools	must	complete	the	tables	titled	2017-2018	Classroom	Teacher	and
Administrator	Attrition	to	report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing
during	the	2017-2018	school	year.	Please	provide	the	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	of
staff	on	June	30,	2017;	the	FTE	for	any	departed	staff	from	July	1,	2017	through	June
30,	2018;	the	FTE	for	added	staff	from	July	1,	2017	through	June	30,	2018;	and	the
FTE	of	staff	added	in	newly	created	positions	from	July	1,	2017	through	June	30,	2018
using	the	tables	provided.

1.	Classroom	Teacher	Attrition	Table

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	on
6/30/17

FTE	Classroom
Teachers
Departed	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Filling
Vacant	Positions
7/1/17	–	6/30/18

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Added
in	New	Positions
7/1/17	-	6/30/18

FTE	of
Classroom
Teachers	on
6/3018

37 2 1 7 42

2.	Administrator	Position	Attrition	Table

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/17

FTE
Administrators
Departed	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE
Administrators
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/17
–	6/30/18

FTE
Administrators
Added	in	New
Positions	7/1/17
-	6/30/18

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/18

5 0 0 5
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3.	Tell	your	school's	story

Charter	schools	may	provide	additional	information	in	this	section	of	the	Annual
Report	about	their	respective	teacher	and	administrator	attrition	rates	as	some
teacher	or	administrator	departures	do	not	reflect	advancement	or	movement	within
the	charter	school	networks.	Schools	may	provide	additional	detail	to	reflect	a
teacher’s	advancement	up	the	ladder	to	a	leadership	position	within	the	network	or
an	administrator’s	movement	to	lead	a	new	network	charter	school.
	

(No	response)

4.	Charter	schools	must	ensure	that	all	prospective	employees	receive	clearance
through	the	NYSED	Office	of	School	Personnel	Review	and	Accountability	(OSPRA)
prior	to	employment.	After	an	employee	has	been	cleared,	schools	are	required	to
maintain	proof	of	such	clearance	in	the	file	of	each	employee.	For	the	safety	of	all
students,	charter	schools	must	take	immediate	steps	to	terminate	the	employment	of
individuals	who	have	been	denied	clearance.	Once	the	employees	have	been
terminated,	the	school	must	terminate	the	request	for	clearance	in	the	TEACH
system.		
	
Have	all	employees	have	been	cleared	through	the	NYSED	TEACH	system?
	

Yes

5.	For	perspective	or	current	employees	whose	clearance	has	been	denied,	have	you
terminated	their	employment	and	removed	them	from	the	TEACH	system?

Not	Applicable

Thank	you

http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/


1	/	2

Entry	12	Uncertified	Teachers
Last	updated:	07/30/2018

FTE	Count	of	All	Teachers
(Certified	and	Uncertified)	as	of
6/30/18

44

FTE	Count	of	All	Certified
Teachers	as	of	6/30/18

40

Instructions	for	Reporting	Percent	of	Uncertified	Teachers
The	table	below	is	reflective	of	the	information	collected	through	the	online	portal	for
compliance	with	New	York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	for	teaching	staff
qualifications.	Enter	the	relevant	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	count	of	teachers	in	each
column.	For	example,	a	school	with	20	full	time	teachers	and	5	half	time	teachers
would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.	If	more	than	one	column	applies	to	a	particular
teacher,	please	select	one	column	for	the	FTE	count.	Please	do	not	include
paraprofessionals,	such	as	teacher	assistants.

FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	on	6/30/18,	and	each	uncertified	teacher	should	be
counted	only	once.

FTE	Count

1.	Total	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	(6-30-18) 4

2.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	at	least	three	years
of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary	classroom	teaching
experience	(6-30-18)

2

3.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are	tenured	or
tenure	track	college	faculty	(6-30-18) 0

4.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years	of	Teach
for	America	experience	(6-30-18) 2

5.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	exceptional
business,	professional,	artistic,	athletic,	or	military
experience	(6-30-18)

0

6.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	do	not	fit	into	any
of	the	prior	four	categories	(6-30-18) 0

Thank	you.
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    2018-2019 Academic Calendar 
12 Teacher= 191, K-8 = 179, HS = 170 √ School Closed √ PD&No Students REV. 07/17/2018
9 ––– D A T E S ––– √ 1/2 Day √ PTC ––– D A T E S –––

July 2018 August 2018 6

7/16-8/10 MS Summer School Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/2018Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/20188/16-8/17 Aug Regent Exams
7/16-8/15 HS Summer School 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 7/10/2018 1 2 3 4 7/10/201824 First Day of School for MS teachers

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6/5/20185 6 7 8 9 10 11 7/10/201827 First Day of School for HS teachers
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 5/18/201812 13 14 15 16 17 18 7/13/201824-31 Teacher PD Week
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 5/18/201819 20 21 22 23 24 25

29 30 31 7/13/201826 27 28 29 30 31

5/18/2018

19 September 2018 7/13/2018 October 2018 7/13/201822

3 Labor Day  - No School Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/2018Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/20185 1st  Five Week Report Cards
4 1/2 Half Day for K,1,5,9 grades 1 7/10/2018 1 2 3 4 5 6 7/10/20188 Columbus Day - No School
5 First full-day for all staff&students 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7/10/20187 8 9 10 11 12 13 7/17/201811 1/2 day for Students-Parent-Teacher Conf. 1pm-7pm

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 7/17/201814 15 16 17 18 19 20 7/17/201812 Superintendent Day (PD) - No Students
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 7/17/201821 22 23 24 25 26 27 7/17/2018

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31 7/17/2018

30 7/11/2018

18 November 2018 December 2018 7/13/201815

6 Election Day -  No School Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/2018Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/201814 2nd Five Week Report Cards
9 1st Qtr Report Cards 1 2 3 7/10/2018 1 7/17/201820 1/2 day for Students- Parent-Teacher Conf. 1pm-7pm

12 Veterans Day - No School 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 7/10/20182 3 4 5 6 7 8 7/10/201821 Superintendent Day (PD) - No Students

21 1/2 Day for Staff and Students 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 7/10/20189 10 11 12 13 14 15 7/13/201824-31 Winter Break - No School
22-23 Thanksgiving Break - No School 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 7/13/201816 17 18 19 20 21 22 7/10/2018

25 26 27 28 29 30 7/10/201823 24 25 26 27 28 29 7/10/2018

30 31

21 January 2019 7/13/2018 February 2019 7/13/201815

1 New Year - No School Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/2018Su M T W R F Sa 7/11/201818 President's Day - No School
15 Senior Pictures Class of 2019 1 2 3 4 5 7/11/2018 1 2 7/13/201819-22 Mid-Winter Break - No School
21 MLK Holiday - No School 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 7/11/20183 4 5 6 7 8 9 7/11/2018

22-26 HS Jan Regent Exams 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 7/11/201810 11 12 13 14 15 16

24 2nd QTR Report Cards 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 7/11/201817 18 19 20 21 22 23

25 Superintendent Day (PD) - No Students 27 28 29 30 31 7/11/201824 25 26 27 28

7/11/2018

21 March 2019 7/13/2018 April 2019 7/13/201816

8 3rd Five Week Report Cards Su M T W R F Sa 7/17/2018Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/20182-6 MS ELA NYS Assesment Exams
15 Parent Teacher Conf - 9am-3pm - No Students 1 2 7/17/2018 1 2 3 4 5 6 7/17/201810 1/2 Day for Students

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7/10/20187 8 9 10 11 12 13 7/17/201811 Superintendent Day (PD) - No Students

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 7/17/201812 3rd QTR ReportCards
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 7/17/201819-26 Spring Break - No School
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 7/17/2018

31 7/17/2018

21 May 2019 7/13/2018 June 2019 7/13/201817

1-5 MS Math NYS Assessment Exams Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/2018Su M T W R F Sa 7/10/20183 HS Global Regent Exam
8 1/2 Day for Students 1 2 3 4 7/10/2018 1 7/10/20184 Eid al-Fitr Holiday - No School
9 Superintendent Day (PD) - No Students 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 7/10/20182 3 4 5 6 7 8 7/10/201818-27 HS Regents Exams

17 4th Five Week Report Cards 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 7/10/20189 10 11 12 13 14 15 7/17/201824 Kindergarten  Moving Up Day
24-27 Memorial Day Weekend - No School 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 7/13/201816 17 18 19 20 21 22 7/17/201825 8th Grade Moving Up Day

26 27 28 29 30 31 6/5/201823 24 25 26 27 28 29 7/17/201826 Last Day for HS and MS
30 7/17/201826 HS Graduation & Superintendent Day

7/17/201827-30 ALL School Offices Closed
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